HDTRA1-08-CBDIF-CBT-BAA

Amendment 2


The purpose of this amendment is to post the Questions and Answers received as of COB, Thursday, February 14, 2008.

Questions and Answers

GENERAL QUESTIONS

QUESTION 1:  Is it possible to request 4 years of funding under this BAA, or is 3 years the maximum?

ANSWER: The amount of time to propose for conducting the research depends on the nature of the work, specific tasks required to conduct the research, how many people are involved at any given time, the type of deliverable (e.g., paper report versus equipment prototype), and the Technology Readiness Level (TRL) at the start of the research vice what TRL is desired by the Government at the 'end-point' of a given project. 
QUESTION 2:  Is collaboration between private industry and DoD labs a plus to win the program?


ANSWER: Private industry may team with government labs if the government facility adds value to the overall research and development effort or brings a unique capability (e.g., chemical surety lab or biosafety facility).  

QUESTION 3: What is the simplified acquisition threshold (i.e. does this work qualify for the $250,000 domestic threshold)?

ANSWER: “Simplified acquisition threshold” means $100,000, except for acquisitions of supplies or services that, as determined by the Head of the Agency, are to be used to support a contingency operation or to facilitate defense against or recovery from nuclear, biological, chemical, or radiological attack (41 U.S.C. 428a)… At this time, the Head of the Agency has not made this determination.   

QUESTION 4: Are there any requirements/restrictions for companies whose headquarters are internationally based, though major business headquarters are also located in the U.S.?  

ANSWER: Proposals submitted for this BAA will be considered from U.S. and Foreign Enterprises as specified in BAA Section 4/Eligibility.

QUESTION 5: Are there any import/export control requirements other than that listed in the solicitation which are requirements of DTRA/DOD?

ANSWER: IAW with Section 10, the offeror is responsible for ensuring compliance with all applicable export control laws and determining applicability of the proposed technology to ITAR regulations and restrictions.  Additionally, the Government may identify additional requirements for offerors participating in Phase II, such as instructions for marking deliverables that are export-controlled. 

QUESTION 6: If several solutions are available to fit the needs of the topic, can two proposals be submitted for a single topic?  
ANSWER: Do not combine multiple technologies into one proposal (unless each individual technology somehow relies on another proposed technology to operate as an integrated system); submit separate proposals to a given topic where each proposal represents a possible solution to the topic solicitation.

QUESTION 7:  Can proposals be submitted for more than one of the research topics?  Should separate proposals be submitted or a combined response be submitted?

ANSWER: Separate proposals are to be prepared and submitted in response to individual topics; do not attempt to prepare a single proposal that spans multiple topics.

TOPIC SPECIFIC QUESTIONS

Regarding Topic CBT-09-DET-01 (Highly Specific, Low-Level Chemical Threat Detection) 

QUESTION 8: Are submissions permitted to this proposal topic that simply address the development of the detector but do not look at all of the system integration?

ANSWER: The topic requires that all critical issues be addressed in the design of the "system."  If a critical shortfall is identified, then the proposal submission must contain a workplan that specifically addresses the corrective action to address the limitations as part of the overall system design and development effort. 

QUESTION  9: Will you provide a prioritized list of chemical analytes along with the corresponding target concentrations for each analyte in vapor phase and in liquid media? 

ANSWER: No, the intent of the topic is to assume that the system represents capabilities of a full service analytical laboratory.

QUESTION 10: Will any level of field-testing be considered in this program, if so, to what extent?

ANSWER: No, it is pre-mature to discuss field testing at this time.

QUESTION 11: What do you mean by hyphenated system? Does the system have to be hyphenated to meet the requirements?

ANSWER: Hyphenated or hybrid meaning multiple technologies working in concert to provide a single result with high confidence.  The proposer's choice as to the technology(ies) to use in the design so long as the final design/system meets the stated topic requirements/needs.

QUESTION 12: How would you prioritize sensitivity, selectivity, and size/battery operation?  

ANSWER: Consider all equal at this time; define the trade-offs (and justify) when specifying the parameters of the proposed system.

QUESTION 13:  Should this effort include development and testing of a prototype system that advances the TRL level of a current sensor?


ANSWER: This is a design study to determine these issues.  Critical issues need to be addressed in the proposal in order to complete the design study as stated in the topic.

QUESTION 14: What is the rationale for the selectivity criteria? Can you expand beyond the example given so we can sufficiently address the requirement?

ANSWER: There is no interest in pursuing incremental improvements of existing technologies; the topic seeks future generation capabilities.  

QUESTION 15: What is the envisioned CONOPs for this system (i.e. point sensor that is carried by soldier or one distributed remotely)?

ANSWER: All of the above; point sensor deployment as well as remote distribution are all possible CONOPS.
QUESTION 16:  Will you provide a prioritized list of chemical analytes along with the corresponding target concentrations for each analyte (i.e. PELs) in vapor phase and in liquid media? 

ANSWER: No; the intent of the topic is to assume that the system represents capabilities of a full service analytical laboratory.

QUESTION 17: Will you provide a prioritized list of interferents and their challenge conditions (i.e. constant background concentration, varying profiles)?

No; again, the system desired must be able to conduct analyses of samples in various ambient environments.

QUESTION 18: Is the detection of chemicals in liquid media of equal, greater, or lower importance as the detection of chemicals in vapor phase?

ANSWER: No; the system desired must be able to conduct analyses of samples of various environmental matrices.

QUESTION 19: As chemical warfare agents (CWA) are not easily simulated for some detection technologies, will funding be provided to support live CWA testing and evaluation?

ANSWER: If chemical surety testing ('live CWA testing and evaluation') is desired in the conduct of the system development, include the details and associated costs in the proposal submission.  

QUESTION 20: Will any prototype development effort, beyond design concept, be allowed/supported within this program to advance TRL maturity?

ANSWER: Yes. Prototype development, beyond design concept, may be proposed as an option to follow the design concept.

QUESTION 21: Will you provide a unified metrics of testing that all technologies will undergo and be evaluated against? If so, can you provide the test matrix?  

ANSWER: A unified metrics of testing that all technologies will undergo and be evaluated against will be provided after system design assessment.

QUESTION 22: Will you provide a test matrix that specifies the number of chemical analytes and interferents simultaneously present and at what concentration levels (constant vs. profiles) and exposure scenarios (sequential, overlapping,)

ANSWER: A test matrix will be provided after system design assessment.

QUESTION 23: What is “state-of-the-art” (i.e. commercial vs. government industry funded vs. government research efforts or ALL)?

ANSWER: This information is unavailable, as much of the requested information is proprietary and/or has intellectual property rights associated with the information. 

QUESTION 24: Is the system only supposed to detect vapor and liquid threats?  What about solids?

ANSWER: Proposer may choose to add solids, although solids are not a requirement.

QUESTION 25: Are there exact False Negative Rate or False Positive Rate targets for the system? 

ANSWER: No, the expectation is to be equivalent to the capabilities/performance of a full service analytical laboratory.

QUESTION 26: Is the goal of this effort to build and test a system, or to perform a system architecture or design study? 

ANSWER: The deliverable for this topic is a system design with justification/rationale provided on the performance/engineering parameter trades.

QUESTION 27: Can you further define selectivity beyond the example given in the BAA?

ANSWER: No, as this topic is for a future capability; therefore, this has not yet been further defined.

Regarding Topic CBT-09-DET-03 (In-silico, made-to-order, Infra-Red (IR) challenge data modeling and generation):

QUESTION 28: Will the desired model need to simulate both a horizontal line of sight and a vertical line of sight?


ANSWER: Yes, the desired model will need to simulate both a horizontal line of sight and a vertical line of sight.

QUESTION 29: Will the model need to simulate the presence of aerosol clouds, as either targets or interferents?

 
ANSWER: Yes, the desired model will need to simulate the presence of aerosol clouds as either targets and/or interferents.

Regarding Topic CBT-09-DET-04 (Rapid, flow-through, detection of non-fluorescent threats):

QUESTION 30: Explain what is meant specifically by non-fluorescent threats?  Does this mean non-biologicals, as most biologicals will have some fluorescent property, or does it refer to a property such as size, or something other than fluorescence?


ANSWER: Technologies of interest solicited by Topic CBT-09-DET-04 are those that exploit any potential signature (other than fluorescence) that can be used to detect/identify a threat material.  Technologies must not rely on reagents or any wet chemistry approaches.  The threat can be either biological or non-biological.  Particles may be present in any environmental matrix.  Further, characterizing physical properties such as size, shape, etc. are of limited use and do not meet the definition for detect/identify.

QUESTION 31: Are there size weight and power targets for the system?

ANSWER: there are no definitive/absolute targets for weight & power at this time; however, a design that results in a system that is not portable (1 cubic foot, 40 lbs range) is not desired.

QUESTION 32: Are you looking for optical or non-optical based approaches?

ANSWER: This can be determined by the proposer; any system that requires reagents or other consumables (other than power) is not desired.

QUESTION 33: What mass fraction of the 2.5 um particle is the actual threat of interest? 

ANSWER: The mass fraction of the 2.5 um particle will directly depend on the specific threat material.

QUESTION 34: In order to achieve the minimum detection threshold of 5 particles per liter within a response time of 5 seconds, can the flow rate be increased to >1 liter per minute?
ANSWER: The proposed design must be supported by a rationale presented in the submission. 

Regarding Topic CBT-09-DET-05 (Modular and Adaptable Sample Preparation):
QUESTION 35: Is the modularity desired in the system supposed to be re-configurable in the field to handle different specific sample types and detection methodologies?


ANSWER: A single system is desired to address all of the requirements; reconfiguration in the field should not be necessary if the system is appropriately designed.

QUESTION 36: What are the expected liquid volume ranges for input samples?

 
ANSWER: Assume that the sample size can range from 3mL to 10 mL in size.  Also assume 100,000 organisms at max.

QUESTION 37: Are there requirements for the volume of the output samples? 


ANSWER: The volume of the output samples must be suitable for use in various potential detection technologies.  Current detection technologies require varying sample volumes.

QUESTION 38: With regards to lipid identification, does DTRA envision a sample prep system that can isolate lipids from nucleic acids, proteins and cellular debris?  Or a sample prep system that can both isolate and chemically modify the lipids for down-stream analysis such as Fatty Acid Methyl Ester (FAME) profiling?

ANSWER: This can be determined by the proposer; note that there is a significant desire to keep the numbers and volumes of consumables as low as possible.

QUESTION 39:  Is this topic soliciting one proposal that will cover all of these areas (1-5 below) and anticipates delivery of a fully functional, automated system by the end of the period of performance?

1) Feasibility study to consider automating the sample prep process

2) Development of a model system

3) Research plan that expands the model, providing firm theoretical direction

4) Proof-of-concept testing (examples) 



*
Test of general automation

*
Test to compare automated efficiency for processing individual targets to benchtop methods

*
Test of multiple targets (DNA, RNA, toxins, spores, vegetative cells, lipids, proteins)

5) System development (examples) 



*
Speed < 15 minutes



*
Cost < $10 per analysis (for multiple targets)

*
Ruggedized/Field Deployable for duration of one week including consumables.



*
Real world sample testing

ANSWER: Topic deliverable is Items 1, 2, and 3.  Options to the topic can include Items 4 and 5.

QUESTION 40:  Are biological chemicals considered the same as toxins?  If not, specify biological chemicals.

ANSWER: Yes, biological chemicals are considered the same as toxins. 

QUESTION 41:  How do you prioritize DNA. RNA, protein, and lipid prep?  Does the sample prep module need to be able to at all of them to be compliant?

ANSWER: The intent is to address all; define the trade-offs (and justify) when specifying the parameters of the proposed system.

Regarding Topic CBT-09-IST-01 (CBRN Data Sharing Among Medical and CBRN Information Systems):
QUESTION 42: How accessible are the involved communities of interest?  Will we be able to engage directly with interested stakeholders from each agency or is the effort to be non-intrusive, relying upon published artifacts relative to JEM/JOEF/JWARN and data descriptions (Privacy Act/HIPPA etc.)?


ANSWER:  Level of accessibility of the "communities of interest" is unknown.  Performer is expected to be proactive in all respects of work execution - note that the effort is NOT to be merely a survey of published artifacts.  Performer must significantly and effectively proactive and must engage with stakeholders to determine the best solution set(s).

QUESTION 43: The association of a material TRL with study and road map deliverables is difficult.  Please clarify what expectation TRL4 levies on this project.


ANSWER:  The Joint Science and Technology Office for Chemical and Biological Defense (JSTO-CBD) performs Technology Readiness Assessments (TRAs) for most projects, indicating their level of maturity and usability.  A representative TRL will be issued upon demonstration that the performer's deliverables are, or will be, effective within the target environment.
QUESTION 44: The topic states "TRL 4 is expected by 4Q FY09."  Does this mean that TRL 4 must be achieved by the end of 4Q, or by the beginning of 4Q?  Is a proposal that only achieves TRL 4 preferred, or would a proposal that contains options/ tasks after 4Q FY09 to achieve higher TRL levels also be responsive or preferred?  
ANSWER:  The specified TRL is expected No Later Than (NLT) the end of the specified quarter;  while the request for proposals only specifies achieving a TRL 4, those submissions that exceed TRL4 would also be considered.  However, note that if the development is proposed beyond achieving TRL4, options must be clearly severable as this BAA requests work only for conduct during FY09.

QUESTION 45: Specifically, the topic seems to focus upon analysis, design, recommendations and related information, all of which can be delivered in the form of a document or other data files.  Should a responsive proposal focus on delivering the architecture/analysis/roadmap for implementation, or can it/should it also include a software prototype implementation of some data sharing capabilities?

ANSWER: A software prototype could be offered.

Regarding Topic CBT-09-IST-02 (Information Assimilation and Fusion):
QUESTION 46: The topic states "TRL 3 is expected by 4Q FY09."  Does this mean that TRL 3 must be achieved by the end of 4Q, or by the beginning of 4Q?  Is a proposal that only achieves TRL 3 preferred, or would a proposal that contains options/tasks after 4Q FY09 to achieve higher TRL levels also be responsive or preferred?

ANSWER:  The specified TRL is expected No Later Than (NLT) the end of the specified quarter.  Proposal submissions would be considered that address development beyond the specified TRL.  However, note that if the development is proposed beyond the topic specified TRL, options must be clearly severable as this BAA requests work only for conduct during FY09.  
QUESTION 47:  Will data from currently available sensors (ACADA, JCAD, JBPDS, THAAD, Radar, etc) be available for use in testing algorithms developed under this program?

ANSWER: At a minimum, generic sensor information representative of each type of sensor of interest will be provided.  When possible, specific sensor characteristics will be provided.  Joint Program Manager-Information Systems (JPM-IS) has available a sensor emulator that provides realistic “sensor data” as an output.  The library of sensor ‘personalities’ only includes the ACADA (from the above list).  Technical parameters of the other sensors and systems should be available to the project.  Required granularity of data should be addressed early in the development process in order that appropriate data may be made available in a timely manner.
QUESTION 48:  Will a scenario test data set including all types of sensors and other data such as intelligence data (or a contrived example) be provided for the testing of algorithms?

ANSWER: Although not currently planned, it is possible that a scenario data set may be developed and provided for testing purposes.  However, developers should be prepared to independently construct data sets after consultation with the sponsoring S&T manager.  
QUESTION 49:  How will the algorithms be evaluated for performance? 

ANSWER:  Algorithms will be tested in realistic and/or synthetic environments to evaluate performance.  Algorithms will be evaluated for skill based on standard performance metrics such as frequency of false negatives, false positives, etc. Also to be considered are speed of execution and processor loading, as these algorithms will be executed on relatively “low end” tactical machines.  Additionally, the “modularity” of the algorithm will be considered.
QUESTION 50:  Who is responsible for incorporating the algorithms into JWARN? 

ANSWER:  During the advanced development stage, developers will be required to work with the JWARN integration team to incorporate algorithms into the end system.  Software developed in conjunction with this effort will be developed to comply with the JWARN Interface Requirements Specification (IRS), CBRN Data Model, and other standards, as appropriate.  Integration intothe JWARN code basline will be accomplished by the JWARN prime contractor with assistance provided by the code developer.
QUESTION 51:  What are the computation limitations of JWARN? 

ANSWER: JWARN is required to operate on a wide range of platforms from stand-alone PCs to Unix-based Command & Control (C2) systems.  Any developed algorithm solutions should be scalable to accommodate variable computational constraints.  JWARN is being web-enabled in anticipation of the evolution of C2 systems to a Service Oriented Architectures (SOA).  Accordingly, code should be modular and should conform to JPM-IS CBRN architectural standards.
Regarding Topic CBT-09-IST-07 (CB Effects on Shipborne Operations)
QUESTION 52: What level of Naval command should the tool support (Theater, Task Force, Vessel, Installation...)?


ANSWER: Effort should be focused on individual ship operations (not installations), and the proposal should indicate the appropriate level of use for the fidelity of the CBRN degrade data produced.  At a minimum, the tool should be appropriate for calculating the total degrade due to the CBRN incident and any mitigation measures at a stated level of fidelity, e.g. appropriate for the commander of a ship to estimate the individual vessel's future combat effectiveness after an attack or evaluate mitigation Techniques, Tactics, & Procedures (TTPs), is desirable.

QUESTION 53: Can the assessment and development assume reach-back connectivity, or should it assume disconnected, autonomous operation? 
Stand-alone or part of a System-of-systems design to be integrated with Navy Command and Control?  Should it be ‘web-accessible’?

ANSWER: It can be a stand-alone system, but it is desirable to include web-enablement or SOAs.

QUESTION 54: Will the model need to interface with other C4I systems?

ANSWER: See above (Q53) for desirability of extendibility to SOA on C2 systems.  Where possible, resource-neutral decisions that will make ease to C2 systems (e.g. use of programming language, databases, etc), especially GCCS-J, should be pursued, but interface with C2 systems should not be a primary driver of design over ability to calculate CBRN degrades.

QUESTION 55:  What are the expected Measures of Effectiveness (MOE's)?

Combat Power before/after CB attack?

ANSWER: Primary Measures of Effectiveness are combat and mission effectiveness and casualties to crew.

QUESTION 56:  Does the model have to be interoperable with any other

models, systems, or Agencies?

ANSWER: Hazard prediction should be provided by the Joint Effects Model (JEM), and the target for transition is the Joint Operational Effects Federation (JOEF) model.

QUESTION 57:  What decisions must the model output support? (Mission Capability, Courses of Action (COA) development, sensor employment, logistic requirements, System acquisition,...)

ANSWER: The primary focus for this effort is estimating CBRN degrade values as they relate to individual ship's mission effectiveness as stated above (see Q52) including TTA and COA development.

QUESTION 58:  Should the effects of chemical and biological warfare attacks that are modeled be compatible with or part of the simulation capability incorporated in the JWARN, JEM and/or JOEF development?

ANSWER: See Q56 and corresponding answer.
QUESTION 59: What data will be available to the model Development Team> (meteorological, oceanographical, toxicological, epidemiological...)?

Integration of GIS?

ANSWER: JEM and JOEF components will be made available during the conduct of the tasks.

QUESTION 60: Will the model need to incorporate or work in conjunction with previously accepted and accredited models (HPAC, VLSTRAC, D2PUFF)?

ANSWER: The only accredited DoD model for transport and dispersion is JEM, which must be used.

QUESTION 61: Is or will the model be part of a larger study effort? If so, will the development team be part of the study?

ANSWER: This effort represents only one area of Modeling & Simulation development to be used in JOEF.  To the extent necessary, other efforts that encompass the Program of Record (JOEF) will be shared.

QUESTION 62: Are the effects to be modeled internal to ship operations (crew contamination/decontamination - protected vs. unprotected) or external (Battle Group or single ship scheme of maneuver)? Or effects on Navy aircrews?

ANSWER: To the effect possible, the product should reflect internal ship tasks and/or single vessel maneuver/mission that could include flight operations.

QUESTION 63: Does the model need to account for port access to decontamination capabilities?

ANSWER: No.

QUESTION 64: What type of VV&A process must the model go through?

ANSWER:  Effort should document sources of data/algorithms as if model was going to be included in Program of Record (POR) level Verification, Validation & Accreditation (VV&A), but VV&A will not be conducted as part of this initial effort.

Regarding Topic CBT-09-IST-08 (CBRN Data on the Battlefield): 

QUESTION 65: Will the format and structure of the CBRN Data Backbone be provided?


ANSWER: The CBRN Data Backbone format and structure will not be determined prior to the start of the tasks to be started in FY09.  This information will not be critical to the successful effort.

QUESTION 66: How will the warfighter access this CBRN Data Backbone?


ANSWER: Warfighter access methods have not been determined at this time. Proposals that address possible access methods are acceptable.
QUESTION 67: How fast will it provide data to the warfighter and how will it include algorithms?


ANSWER: The warfighter need for data is expected to be real-time or near real-time.  The CBRN Data Backbone's inclusion of algorithms and/or modeling capabilities is yet to be determined.
Regarding Topic CBT-09-IST-010 (Human Cognition and Cognitive Performance Enhancement Technologies):

QUESTION 68:  The topic states that "efforts to evaluate non-medical, human-system integration supporting neuroscience research efforts being conducted both inside and outside the DoD community to determine its usefulness and applicability in the CBDP" are being sought.”  Is DTRA interested in a)proposals by performers who would provide/ propose their own technologies and then evaluate the usefulness and applicability of their technologies in the CBDP, or b) proposals to serve as a general evaluation body to find and evaluate technologies across the board that may have applicability to CBDP, or c) both?


ANSWER:  The emphasis is directed to the latter, choice (b), proposals to serve as a general evaluation body to find and evaluate technologies across the board that may have applicability to CBDP.  The topic also requests proposals seeking additional study and research.  This topic asks for specific efforts in two areas: 1) review the current state of play in this topic area, and 2) propose research to further the science in this same area. 
Regarding Topic CBT-09-PHM-04 (Novel Air Filtration Media:

QUESTION 69: The gases are referred to as oxides of carbon, nitrogen and sulfur, hydrides of nitrogen, arsine, phosphine and antimony.  Do you mean only very small molecules such as CO, SO2, NO3, PH3?  Or is there an interest in larger, but still volatile, molecules also?

ANSWER: The interest in low-molecular weight volatile chemicals stem from an interest better filtration (adsorption) for toxic industrial chemicals.  The ultimate aim is to improve performance in order to reduce the required bed volume of the filter.  Chemicals listed provide a "pacing set" of difficult to adsorb compounds, rather than providing an exhaustive list of potential threats.  If this set of chemicals does not adequately describe the performance of your proposed material, you may offer alternative pacing chemicals with rationale as to why the chemical would be representative. . 

QUESTION 70: Is a sorbent optimized for hydrides but not oxides allowable or must both be captured?

ANSWER: The desired sorbent should have the broadest possible application.  If this cannot be achieved in a single material, the next best approach is a generic material that can be functionalized in different ways to target chemical family groupings.  If different materials or functionalities are used, it is desired that these materials are usable in close proximity without the danger of eventual, mutual deactivation. 

Regarding Topic CBDIF-08-PRET-01 (Development of a broad-spectrum and/or multivalent vaccine platform):

QUESTION 71:  What are “select biothreat agents of specific interest to Chemical and Biological Defense Program”? 

ANSWER: “select biothreat agents of specific interest to Chemical and Biological Defense Program” correlate to all of the agents listed in the CDC Category A list of Bioterrorism Agents & the majority of the agents listed in the Category B list of Bioterrorism Agents.  See: http://www.bt.cdc.gov/agent/agentlist-category.asp
Regarding Topic CBDIF-08-TAS-01 (Molecular Interactions of Chemical or Biological Warfare Agents with Environmental Materials, Biological Membranes and Fluids):
QUESTION 72:  The topic description emphasizes "coupled experimental and computational studies on the molecular interaction of agents". It can be assumed that the agents of interest are hazardous, thus making experimental studies dangerous and expensive. The use of simulants is of limited value since understanding the chemistry of these agents is the goal of the research. Is it possible to propose development of a molecular dynamics simulation capability based on quantum chemistry? If successful, the research would eliminate much of the need to perform dangerous and expensive experiments.  The tool would be validated against existing experimental and test data.


ANSWER:  The issue is that there is a limited amount of available experimental data and this would call into question the validity of any modeling effort absent any additional empirical studies.  Molecular dynamic simulation is of interest but would need to be accompanied by coupled experimental efforts.
QUESTION 73:  This topic states the "molecular interactions of chemical or biological warfare agents with environmental materials, biological membranes and fluids". Does a proposal need to address each of these substrate interactions or can it be isolated to a detailed analysis of one of these e.g. environmental materials?


ANSWER: Proposals will be considered responsive if they address any one of the substrate types.  Proposals that address more than one will also be responsive.

QUESTION 74: Can the experimental testing be done with surrogates rather than live agents?

ANSWER: Proposals that address surrogates will be considered responsive if they provide a rationale for the surrogate used that relates the proposed research to understanding the mechanisms involved with chemical or biological agent interactions.

QUESTION 75:  Are there specific agents/surrogates (or classes of agents) that must be included?

ANSWER: There are no specific agents/surrogates (or classes of agents) that must be included; however, any chemicals selected for use must be chemical warfare agents or recognized surrogates of chemical warfare agents.

QUESTION 76: Can the research focus on interaction/transport with environmental materials OR biological membranes/fluids?  Or must both be studied?

ANSWER: This can be determined by the proposer; there is no requirement that both must be studied.

QUESTION 77: Can the research focus on chemical OR biological agents?  Or must both be studied?

ANSWER: This can be determined by the proposer; there is no requirement that both must be studied.

Regarding Topic CBDIF-08-TAS-02 (Experimental and theoretical studies of particulate transport mechanisms onto and off of environmental surfaces):
QUESTION 78:  The objectives state "transport mechanisms of particulate matter in the environment...".  Is the definition of "particulate matter" a solid material as opposed to a liquid material interacting with environmental transport mechanisms? 


ANSWER:  Particulate material in this scenario is solid material and not liquid.

This completes the Questions and Answers session for this BAA.
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